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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited (“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2019, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone Ind AS financial statements qive the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended ("the Act™)in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit
inctuding other comprehensive income its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements’ section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2019. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, incfuding the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Key audit matters | How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Transition to IND AS accounting framework (as described in note no.63 of the ind AS financial statements)
The Ind AS financial statements are the | Our audit procedures included considering the
first financial statements the Company has | appropriateness of the processes laid down by the
prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For | management to implement such transition combined with
periods up to and including the year ended | procedures performed as follows:

March 31, 2018, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with | « We obtained management's assessment of applicability

accounting standards notified under the of various accounting standards under Ind AS and their
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, impact on the Company's financial statements and
read together with paragraph 7 of the reviewed the nature of the Ind AS adjustments based on

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian the applicable Ind AS and previous period accounting
M\P or previous GAAP). Accordingly, for policies prepared in accordance with IGAAP.
N

(

sition to Ind AS, the Company has
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

prepared financial statements which
comply with Ind AS applicable for periods
ending on 31 March 2019, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2018, In preparing
these financial statements, the Company’s
opening balance sheet was preparedasat 1
April 2017, the Company’'s date of
transition to Ind AS.

The transition has involved significant
change in the Company’s policies and
processes for financial reporting, incfuding
generation of supportable information and
applying estimates to inter alia determine
impact of Ind AS on accounting.

In view of the materfal impact and the
complexity of implementation of the Ind AS
framework and significance of the various
disclosure, the transition to Ind AS was of
particular importance for our audit as any
error could lead to material misstatement
in the preparation and presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements.

+» We reviewed the exemptions taken by the Company for
first time adoption of Ind AS.

¢ We tested the details of Ind AS adjustments carried out
by the Company as described in the reconciliation of
equity as at the transition date and comparative year
end date reported under erstwhile indian GAAP to Ind
AS and reconciliation of the statement of profit and loss
for the comparative year end date reported under
erstwhile Indian GAAP to Ind AS.

s Performed test of details by inspection of contracts,
documents and policies to assess the appropriateness
of the Ind AS adjustments.

+ We reviewed the shareholding agreements and other
relevant documents to assess control and return to the
Company.

¢« We reviewed the disclosures with respect to the
transition in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS 101 and other applicable disclosures in the Ind AS
financial statement in accordance with the
reguirements of relevant Ind AS.

IT Systems

The reliability and security of IT systems
play a key role in the financial reporting
process of the Company. The Company’'s
key financial accounting and reporting
processes are highly automated, whereby
any gaps in the IT control environment
could result in a material misstatement of
the financial accounting and reporting
records.

Therefore, the assessment of the general IT
controls and the application controls
specific to the accounting and preparation
of financial information is considered to be
a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures assisted by our IT specialists,
included;

General IT controls: We tested the governance and other
higher controls operating over the IT environment of the
Company, including system access and system change
management. We considered the appropriateness of the
access rights granted to applications relevant to financial
accounting and reporting systems and the operating
effectiveness of controls over granting, removal and
appropriateness of access rights.

Application controls: We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of automated controls critical to financial
accounting and reporting. For any identified deficiencies,
tested the design and operating -effectiveness of
compensating controls and, where necessary, extended the
scope of our substantive audit procedures.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board report, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irrequiarities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a quarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The comparative financial infermation of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2017, included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on
the previously issued statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended March 31, 2018,
and March 31, 2017, dated May 2, 2018, and May 16, 2017, respectively expressed an unmodified opinion
on those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the
Company on transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us.

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, whose Ind AS financial statements
include total assets of Rs.26,824.30 million as at July 31, 2018, and total revenues of Rs.2,008.24 million
and net cash inflows of Rs.1,015.19 million for the period ended on that date. These Ind AS financial
statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements,
other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management. Qur opinion
on the standalone Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these entities, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid entity, is based solely on the reports of
such other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

{d> In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f> With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such contrals, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

(9> In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been paid /
provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V to the Act;

(h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
standalone Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 41 to the standalone Ind AS financial
statements;

il. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts;

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

(L\mw" =1

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2019
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Reguirements” of our Report of even date

W @
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(i)

(iip)

v

)

i)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is a
regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
Management during the year. The discrepancies noted on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not material.

According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed, the
Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii) (3), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures
performed, provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 in respect of loans to
directors including entities in which they are interested and in respect of loans and advances given,
investments made and, guarantees, and securities given have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and
the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specifiad the
maintenance of cost records under clause 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the services of
the Company.

(viiXa) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and

b)

©

other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities
though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. As informed, the provisions of sales tax, wealth
tax, value added tax, excise duty and customns duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, ne undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

According to the records of the Company, the dues of income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise , value added tax and cess on account of any dispute, are as

Name of the | Nature of the Amount (Rs) Period to Forum where the
statute dues which the dispute is pending
amount
relates
Income tax | Disallowance 5,879 AY 2014-15, CIT (A)
Act 1961 ufs 14A 2015-16,
2016-17
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(viii)

Gix)

)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

Name of the | Nature of the Amount (Rs) Period to Forum where the
statute dues which the dispute is pending
amount
relates

Income tax | Provision for | 99,67,230 (demand AY 2013-14 CIT (A)
Act 1961 mark to market | paid under protest

loss on | 19,93,446)

derivative

instruments
Rajasthan Value Added | 2,66,28,290 (demand | A.Y 2011-12 Commissioner of
Value Added | Tax paid under protest Income Tax (Appeals)
Tax 1,35,00,000)
Gujrat Value | Value Added | 12,34,31,573 AY 2010-11 Joint Commissioner
Added Tax Tax (demand paid under (Appeals)

protest 50,00,000)
Madhya Value Added | 27,38,545 (demand AY 2013-14 Additional Joint
Pradesh Tax paid under protest Commissioner of Tax
Value Added 589,655)
Tax
West Bengal | Value Added | 30,29,528 (demand AY 2013-14 | The President,
Value Added | Tax paid under protest W.B.C.T. Appellate &
Tax 326,300) Revisional Board
Gujrat Value | Value Added | 1,33,52,802 (demand | A.Y 2014-15 | Joint Commissioner
Added Tax Tax paid under protest (Appeals)
19,96,000)

Uttar Value Added | 5,51,59,178 (demand | A.Y 2015-16 Commercial Tax
Pradesh Tax paid under protest Tribunal
Value Added 1,10,32,000)
Tax

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation given
to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial institution
or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the moneys raised by
way of initial public offer or further public offer {inciuding debt instruments) and term loans have
been have been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the financial statements and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by the officers and
employees of the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

According te the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

The company has made private placement of Non-Convertible debentures during the year under
review, in compliance with the section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised has been used for the
purpose for which funds were raised.
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management and audit procedures
performed, the Company has not entered intoc any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
CAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

liew— ==

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number; 102102

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2019
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RURAL & CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act')

To the Members of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate
Services Limited ("the Company™) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal contro! over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the
Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial contrels over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone
financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the refiability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference
to these standalone financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
rinciples, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
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regarding prevention or timely detection of unautherized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these standalone financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
standalone financial statements to future periocds are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinlon

In our opinion, the has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
hartered Accountants
CAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

me‘%

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership Number: 102102

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 13, 2019




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edciweiss Commodities Services Limijed)

Balance Sheet

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Asat Asat Asat
Note 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
ASSETS
Nom-current assets
(a) Prepesty, Plant and Equipment 2 223,44 262.27 218.10
{b) Capital work in progress 41.30 0.25 10.82
{c) Investment property 2 2,894.51 2,675.73 2,804.86
(d) Goodwill 2 - - 18.68
(e} Other Intangible assets 2 117,01 90.89 167.20
{f) Intangible assets undor development 1.20 19.80 97
{g) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 3 11,246.63 10,005,57 10,281.13
(ii) Loans 4 2,021.08 21,295.70 16,668.85
{iii) Other financia assets s 0.13 0.13 25.39
(b) Deferred tax asses (ner) 6 464,01 958.73 633,87
(i) Income tax asscts (net) 7 631.54 193.06 600.60
(§) Other noc-current assets 8 1.33 0.38 226.58
N 17,692.23 35,503.51 31,685.05
Current assets
(a) Inventories 9 1,691.32 1,429.06 2,687.50
(b} Financial Asscts
{i) Stock in trade 10 8,077.99 9.208.49 10,291.96
{ii) Investments 1 1.22 8.15 58.62
(iii) Trade receivables 12 3,085.16 10,371.24 3,940.60
(iv) Cash and cash equivalents 13 539335 3,101.26 652.20
'{v) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 764.54 592,70 2,046.67
{vi) Loans 15 22,217.29 59,020.49 63,072.73
(vii) Other financial assets 113 231.06 574.68 766,32
() Current tax assets (net) 17 516.56 1,022.76 117.88
{d) Other current assets 18 792.03 700.95 472.16
42,794.82 86,029.78 84,106.64
TOTAL ASSETS 60,487.08 121,533.29 115,791.69
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 19 397.75 297,75 29775
(b) Other equity p0] 5,454.26 2.559.23 (749.47)
5,852.01 2,856.98 {451.72)
Linbilities
Non-current liabilitiez
(o) Financial liabilities
(i) Bommowings 2] 40,182.28 55.321.31 32,512.92
(i) Trade payables - - -
(ii) Other financial tiakilities 2 5124 63.71 84.65
{b) Provisions 3 1322 47.31 67.28
Current Labilities
{(a) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 24 11,482.12 56,981.02 77,140.65
(ii) Trade payables 25
Total outstanding dues of micro prises and small th - . -
Total outstanding ducs to creditors other than micro enterprises and smal] enterprises 2,17546 4,359.46 4,536.23
(iii) Other financial Eabidities 26 287.85 TI13.75 923 40
(b) Other current liabilities 27 35421 843.05 461.15
{c) Provisions 28 51.80 161.04 400.46
{d) Current 1ax liabilities (net) 9 36.86 180.66 61.67
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 60,487.05 121.533.29 115.791.69
Significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of the finzneia) statements
As per our report of even date attached,
For S.R. Batliboi & Co, LLP For and en behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ~ ~ Edelweiss Rura] & Corporate Services Limited
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003 E/E300005
]
ew™ =] ﬂ INTV )
Qo
per Shrawan Jalan Rujan Panjwani Santosh Dadheech
Pariner Executive Director Executive Director
Membership No: 102102 DIN.: 00237366 DIN.:00196204
vA "
MEnoj Sharma
Chief Financial Office;
Murnbai Mumbai
13 May 2019 13 May 2019




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Revenue from operations
Fee income 30 1,912.55 1,835.93
Income from treasury 31 1,095.08 5931.83
Interest income 32 11,289.86 13,453.75
Sale of commodities 15,796.28 19,827.93
Other operating revenue i3 1,214.62 1,492.71
Other income 34 47.06 56.63
Total Income 31,355.45 37,260,78
Expenses
Purchases of commodities 15,421.30 18,676.48
Changes in inventories of commodities, finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock in
trade 68.10 1,253.41
Employee benefits expense 35 1,605.38 1,570.50
Finance costs 36 9,714.12 12,064.57
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 309.79 319.54
Other expenses 37 2,109.45 2,383.98
Total expenses 29,232.14 36,268.48
Profit hefore tax 2,123.31 992.30
Tax expenses
(1) Current tax 360.84 52575
{2) Deferred tax 423.13 (279.55)
Profit for the year 1,339.34 746.10
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / loss on defined benefit plans (6.26) 2,79
Deferred Tax Charge/ (Benefit) 2.19 {0.91)
Total (4.07) 1.88
Total Comprehensive Income 1,335,27 747.98
Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each):
(1) Basic 44 44.86 25.06
(2) Diluted 44.86 25.06
Significant accounting policies 1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Al Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005
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per Shrawan Jalan
FPartner
Membership No: 102102

Mumbai
13 May 2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Yoy

Rujan Panjwani
Executive Director
DIN.: 00237366

Santosh Dadheeeh

Executive Director
DIN.:00196204




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financlal statements

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

Statement of changes [n Equity
Equity share capltal *
Balance at the beginning of the reporting | Changes in equity Batance at theend of |Changes in equity Balance at the end
peviod {1 April 2017) share capital the reporting period  Ishare capital of the reporting
(31 March 2013) ¢ period (31 March
2019)
197.75 - 29775 100.00 39175
Other Equlty
Reserves and Surpluy
Debenture
Capital Reserve Cap lt:::fvz!mpﬂnn s““’:\ﬂ;::mm ESOP reserve General reserve redemption Rgmn: Total
reserve
Balance at 1 April 2017 (Indian GAAP) - - 3,350.70 - 181.68 1,661.36 {1,266.42) 3,927.32
Reserve created on account of marger 49.21 » {11 2.100) - - - - {62.89)
I=d AS adj ts - - 2226.4%) 5.7 - - 12,440.23) {4,5613.90}
Balance at 1 April 2017 {Ind AS) 49.21 - 1,012.15 5277 181.68 1,661.36 13,706.65) {749.47)
Profit or loss - - - - - - 746.10 746.10
Other compreh income - - - - - - 1.88 1.88
Total Comprehensive Income for Lhe - - - - - - 747.98 747,93
year
Dividends to equity sharchalders - - - - - - (248.62) (248.62)]
Dividend distribution tax - - - - - - {50.60) {30.60)
ESQP charpe - - - 9.64 - - . 9.64
m’;";‘:ﬂh sharcholders in thelr . . . - . . 233654 233654
Transfers to / from retained earnings - 30.00 - - {181.68) 694.86 (543.18) -
Income tax effect of ESOP - - - - - - 48.95 48.95
Any other change 35364 - 3236 - - - 78.82 464.82
Balance at 31 March 2018 {fnd AS) 402.85 30.00 1,044.51 62.41 - 2,356.1F {1,336.76) 1,559.23
Profit or loss - - - - - - 1,339.34 1,339.34
Orher comprehensive income - - - - - - (4.07)) {4.07y
Total Comprehensive Income for Lhe - - - - - - 133527 1,335.27
Near
Issuc of equity § - - 1,600.00 - - - - 1,680.00
Income tax cffect of ESOP - - - - - - (48.95) (48.95)|
Transactions with sharcholders in their - - - ’ - - - in 872
capacity as such
Any other change - - . - . - - - -
Balance at 31 March 2019 (Ind AS) 402.85 30,00 2,644.51 62.41 ) - 256,21 (41.713) 5454.26

For 5.R. Batlibol & Co. LLP

f

Far and on behall of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

ICAI Firm Registration Nurber: 301003E/E300005

L\rcufcﬂ =

@w,wtw | M’

per Shrawan Jalan Rujan Panjwant
Fariner Executive Director Exgcutive Director
Membership No: 102102 DIN.: 00237366 DIN.:00196204
U\
: -
Manej Sharma Rupa Agarwal
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbzi
13 May 2019

Mumbai
13 May 2019



Nature and purpose of reserves

Capltal reserve
The Group recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group®s own equity instruments to capital reserve.

Capital redemption reserve
As per Companics Act, 2013, capital redeoption resarve is ereated when company purchases its awn shares out of froc neserves or securities premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred
to capital redemption reserve. The resarve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Securities premium
Securifies premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of section 52 of the Compantes Act, 2013,

General reserve
The general reserve is a free reserve which is used frem time to time to transfer profits from retained carnings for appropriation putposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another
and 38 not an item of other comprehensive income, itemns includad in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit and loss.

Debenture redemption reserve
The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue d to create a deb dempti re:zveﬁ'mnannualpmﬁ!s until such debentures are redecmed. the Campany is required to transfer a specified percentage
{as provided in the Companics Ast, 2013} of the di d hle deb to d ion reserve. The credited to the debenture redempticn reserve may not be utilised except to redeem debentures.

On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture mi:mp!mn reserve to rctamai earnings,

ESOF reserve
Catain of the Company’s empleyees have been granted options to acquine equity shares of the Ultimate Parent Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited). This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their
fair value at the grant dates as recognised over the vesting period of such options, 10 the extent that the Uliimate Parent Company has rot recovered such cost from the Company.

Deemed contribution / distribution
For transactions with group companics, where the transaction price is different than the fair valuc of the concemed financial & on the ian date, the difference is treated as deemed contribution from the group or
deemned distribution to the group (as the case may be) and recognized in retained exrmings.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Cash Flow Statement

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 2,123.31 992.30
Adjustments for
Impairment on financial instruments (nhet) (108.98) 534.65
Depreciation and amortisation expense 309,79 319.54
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) (1.12) (43.54)
Provision for employee benefits (145.63) (19.57)
Dividend on stock in trade (0.35) (267.29)
Share of profit from partnership firm (4.33) (40.00)
Finance costs 9,395.34 11,346.65
(Profit) / loss on sale of current and non-current investments (8.10) 257.83
Fair valuation (gain) / loss on non-current investments {889.87) 254.03
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 10,670.06 13,334.60
Changes in working capital ‘
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivables 731536 (6,404.64)
Decrease in stock in trade 868.21 2,341.93
Decrease in loans and advances 55,971.06 285.60
Decrease in other assets 251.55 189.10
Decrease in liabilities and provisions (3,032.37) (71.77)
Cash generated from operations 72,043.87 9,674.82
Taxes paid (net of refunds) (459.93) (904.04)
Net cash generated from operating activities - A 71,583.94 8,770.78
B Cash flow from investing activities
(Purchase) / sale of fixed assets (net) (including capital work-in progress) (537.25) (81.28)
(Purchase) / sale of current and non-current investments (net) (Refer note 1) (340.92) 1,585.45
Dividend received 0.35 267.29
Net cash generated from investing activities - B (877.82) 2,171.46
C Cash flow from financing activities
(Repayment of) / proceeds from loans (net) (Refer note 1) (10,528.50) 7,072.69
Repayment of subordinated liabilities {76.33) (37.59)
Issue of equity share capital 1,700.00 -
Proceeds from issuance of commercial paper 447,930.00 1,071,920.00
Redemption of commercial paper (499,270.00) (1,076,110.00)
Dividend and dividend distribution tax paid (46.20) (585.83)
Interest paid (8,123.03) {11,185.65)
Net cash used in from financing activities - C (68,414.06) {8,926.38)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,292.06 2,015.86
Adjustment on account of demerger - 433.21
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 3,101.27 652.20
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year 5,393.33 3,101.27
Note:

1

Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under "Indirect Method" as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 "Statement
of Cash Flows " specified under Section 133 of Companies Act ,2013 read with Paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Cash Flow Statement (continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

[y

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

Note:
3 Component of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks
in current accounts
in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months
Cash on hand
Cheques in hand

This is the Cash Flow Satement referred to in our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Qlwc/’” -

1,143.29
4,250.02
0.04

1 \

FVLIVYN

1,601.03
0.10
0.13

1,500.00

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner

Membership No: 102102

Mumbai
13 May 2019

Rujan Panjwani
Executive Director
DIN.: 00237366

e

Manoj Sharma

Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai
13 May 2019

V,
SanTosh Dadheech

Executive Director
DIN.:00196204

Rupa Agarwal
Company Secretary




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements

1.

L1

12

1.3

Significant accounting policies

Background

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited (‘the Company’) (formerly known as
Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited) was incorporated on October 17, 2006 in the State
of Maharashtra as a private company. With effect from January 13, 2011, the status of the
Company was changed from Private Limited Company to a Public Limited Company and the
Registered Office of the Company was shifted from the state of Maharashtra to the state of
Telangana. It is a subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

Company deals in trading of commodities, debt securities, equities and derivatives as part of
its treasury activities. The Company has obtained registration under the Real Estate
Regulatory Act, 2016 (RERA) to act as a real estate agent in the State of Maharashtra as on
June 9, 2017 and in Uttar Pradesh.

In February 2019, pursuant to order of honourable ROC Hyderabad, 5 subsidiaries of the
Company were merged into the Company. As a result of which business of value added agri
services (including warehousing services), collateral management and business support
services to group companies were added to the current business stream of the Company.

Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

The Company’s financial statements has been prepared and presented in accordance with
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and in compliance with the Division
II of the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its
financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of
the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 (Indian GAAP or previous GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019 are the first financial statements of the Company prepared under Ind AS. Refer to
Note 1.21 for information on how the Company adopted Ind AS for opening balance sheet.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, and other
financial assets held for trading, which have been measured at fair value. The Company’s
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) in millions.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of services rendered to customers and time
elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of
the consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle
of 12 months.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities and disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the reported revenue and




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

14

Revenue recognition

Brokerage income on commodities broking business is recognised as per contracted
rates at the execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date and
is reflected net of related sub-brokerage expenses, goods and service tax (“GST”),
transaction charges and stock exchange expenses.

Fee income including advisory fees is accounted over the period as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

Business support services including web based services are accounted on accrual
basis in accordance with the terms and contracts entered into between the Company
and the counterparty.

Profit / loss on sale of investments is recognised on trade date basis.
Commodities sales are accounted as per terms of agreement with the parties.

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an
integral part of the EIR.

Warehouse income is recognised on accrual basis by reference to the agreements
entered with customers.

Sales during the course of import by transfer of documents of title i.e. high seas sale
of commodities are booked upon transfer of documents of title to the goods in favour
of buyer before the goods cross the customs frontiers of India.

Agency commission/procurement income is recorded in pursuant to the terms and
conditions mentioned in scope of work /agreement.

Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of realisation.

Interests on delayed payments, warehousing charges and rental income are
recognised on accrual basis by reference to the agreements entered.

Profit / loss from share in partnership firm is accounted once the amount of the share
of profit/ loss is ascertained and credited / debited to the Company’s account in the
books of the partnership firm.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss when the Company’s right to receive
payment of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.

Real estate advisory income is recognised basis the terms and conditions mentioned
in the agreement.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

L5~

Financial Instruments
Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation
or convention in the market place. The Company recognises borrowings when funds reach the
Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at
origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable
in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price
and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on
models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing
the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

*  Amortised cost
*  Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
*  Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at amortised
cost:

= the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

«  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

» the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Amortized cost and Effective interest rate (EIR)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For
purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest
rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future cash flows, including expected credit
losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured
at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity
amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss
allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or
issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. These include debt securities, equity instruments,
mutual fund units, nifty linked debentures etc.

Disclosure requirement of Ind AS 107-Financial Instruments: Disclosure
Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries) at fair
value through profit or loss, unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some
of its strategic equity investments to be measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments meet
the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held
for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost as permitted under Ind AS 27
(Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). ‘

Investment in mutual funds and preference Shares

The Company subsequently measures all investments in mutual fund and preference shares at
fair value through profit or loss as these financial assets do not pass the contractual cash flow
test as required by Ind AS- 109- Financial Instruments, for being designated at amortised cost
or FVTOCI, hence classified at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities. :




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured
at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant
‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at
amortised cost using yield to maturity basis,

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares issued are classified as financial liabilities and are measured at
fair value at inception and at amortised cost subsequently.

Where the transaction price for the preference shares issued differs from the fair value, the
difference is recognized in profit or loss unless the difference is a deemed capital contribution
from the Group, in which case, the said difference is recognized in equity.

In accounting for these preference shares at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition,
interest expense based on the effective interest rate is recognized in profit or loss. This
effective interest rate is based on the initial measurement of the preference shares (fair value)
and the maturity amount. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss
unless the difference is due to a transaction with a related party, in which case, the same is
recognized as a deemed distribution or return of deemed capital contribution, as the case may
be.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
¢ The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

e Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferce has the
ct1ca1 ab111ty to selI the asset in 1ts entlrety to an unrelatcd thlrd party and is able to



Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference
between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts,
in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach” for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of
its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the receivables.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk
of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asset being
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring,

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn
down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn
down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the Company’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant
forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where __
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters o /gﬁm
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credjt & &
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded Ij‘;

& pauw\.‘\%/)



Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

the balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis.
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining requirements,
is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values are
valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal
operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed
value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling 1s
determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if
financial assets) and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date
in line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or
other assefs in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the customers/obligors.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has
no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts,
interest rate swaps and forward commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks,
interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Commodity contracts that are entered into and
continue to be held for the purpose of the receipt or delivery of a non-financial item in
accordance with the Company’s expected purchase, sale or usage requirements are held at
cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to
profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCI
and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or treated as
basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a
non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performanceoftheggsets
and how these are managed.
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Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)
market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.,, an exit price)
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of
valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models are
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty),
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date, Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

* In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising
the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order
to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

* Level 1 financial instruments —Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as
active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments—Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are
significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over
the entire period of the instrument’s life.

* Level 3 financial instruments —Those that include one or more unobservable input that is
significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation
techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with
its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that
estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individu
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1.8

assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised
financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument
basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the
reporting period.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of
the Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise,

Retirement and other employee benefit
Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which
is a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if
any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined
based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit hablhty)
are recogmsed immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or ¢
retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such
non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.
The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

19 Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services that
are granted by the ultimate parent Group are measured by reference to the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that
will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each reporting
period, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to vest.
The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the ‘ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options granted vest in instalments over the
vesting period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment
has a different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

L10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as
appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above.
Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is
provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or
put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to the
date of disposal.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
its property, plant and equipment recognised as of 1 April 2017 (transition date) measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date.

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part
C of the Schedule II for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed
assets are as follows:
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Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets I}Es thill:ll?;i
Building (Other than Factory Building) 60 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years
Solar Power Plant 15 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives
of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is shorter,

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying
amount of those components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised
at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated
useful life. For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of 1 April 2017 (transition date) measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost -as of the transition
date.

Intangible assets under development are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition
of such assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the
balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer
exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the=recgverable
amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.
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L11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

1.12 Inventories

Inventories in the form of commodities are valued at weighted average cost or net realisable
value, whichever is lower.

1.13 Stock in Transit

Stock in transit in the form of commodities are stated at cost.

Li4 Provisions and other contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate,
the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when
there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fiture events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is
virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

L15 Income tax expenses
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductib
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be availa
k against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and
unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or
back. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable
that:

* the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

* tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be-recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

MAT credit asset is recognized where there is convincing evidence that the asset can be
realized in future. MAT credit assets are reviewed as at the balance sheet date and written
down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonably certain to be realised.

L16 Operating leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, in which case lease payments are recognized based
on contractual terms. Contingent rental payable is recognized as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

L17 Investment properity

Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation
are classified as investment property and are measured and reported at cost, including
transaction costs.

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the
investment property less their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule II
to the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined by
technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits
embodied in the investment property. The estimated useful life and residual values are also
reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful
life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.
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disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement
of Profit and Loss in the same period.

Receivables from Agency Business

The Company’s business includes ‘Agency Business’ wherein acts as a procurement agent for
its various principals, and renders other related end to end value additive services like
procurement formalities including importing, receiving and storing of goods, insuring,
maintenance of goods in proper condition, dispatch to designated parties, facilitating funding,
etc. The Company procures goods and makes payment to the supplier on behalf of the
principal. The payment made to supplier is shown as Trade receivables (current), and is
secured by inventory held on behalf of principal marked as lien.

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used for business combinations by the Company.
The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred
measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree. At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed
are recognised at their acquisition date fair values with certain limited exceptions. Goodwill is
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, goodwill
is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to
those units.

Common controlled business combination means a business combination involving entities or
businesses in which all the combining entities or businesses are ultimately controlled by the
same party or parties both before and after the business combination, and that control is not
transitory. Business combinations involving entities or businesses under common control are
accounted for using the pooling of interests method.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, as well as the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods.

Judgments

~ In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, which have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Actuarial assumptions used in calculation of defined benefit plans;

Assumptions used in estimating the useful lives of tangible assets reported under
roperty, plant and equipment.
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First-time adoption — mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions
Overall principle

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of 1 April 2017 (the
transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind
AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by
reclassifying items from previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under Ind AS, and applying
Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject
to the certain exception and certain optional exemptions availed by the Company as detailed
below. '

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial

liabilities prospectively for transactions cccurring on or after 1 April 2017 (the transition
date).

Impairment of financial assets

The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively;
however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date that
financial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at
the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for
information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have been
significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101.

Accounting estimates

The Company’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the transition date are consistent
with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments
to reflect any difference in accounting policies). The same applies to the comparative period
presented.

Past business combinations

The Company has elected not to apply Ind AS 103 Business Combinations retrospectively to
past business combinations that occurred before the transition date of 1 April 2017,

Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets recognised as of 1 April 2017
(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its
deemed cost as of the transition date.

Standards issued but not yet effective
Ind AS 116 Leases:

Ind AS 116 Leases replaces Ind AS 17 Leases, including appendices thereto. Ind AS 116 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019, Ind AS 116 sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and
requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the
accounting for finance leases under Ind AS 17. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of ‘low-value’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-
term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the commencement date of
a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-
of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately recognise the interest expense on th
lease liability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. The application of
standard is not likely to have a material impact on the Company’s Financial Statements.
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Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments to Ind AS 109)

The amendments to Ind AS 109 clarify that for the purpose of assessing whether a
prepayment feature meets the SPPI condition, the party exercising the option may pay or
receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment irrespective of the reason for
prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative compensation do not
automatically fail SPPIL. These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April, 2019.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements.

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments to Ind AS 28)

The amendment clarifies that Ind AS 109, including its impairment requirements, applies to
long-term interests. Furthermore, in applying Ind AS 109 to long-term interests, an entity does
not take into account adjustments to their carrying amount required by Ind AS 28 (ie.,
adjustments to the carrying amount of long-term interests arising from the allocation of losses
of the investee or assessment of impairment in accordance with Ind AS 28). These
amendments are to be applied retrospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Specific transition provisions apply
depending on whether the first-time application of the amendments coincides with that of Ind
AS 109.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements.

Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2018)

Ind AS 12 Income taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the income tax consequences of
dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised the transactions that generated the distributable profits. This is the
case irrespective of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and undistributed profits.
These amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 23 Borrewing costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing remains outstanding afier the related
asset is ready for its intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the funds that an
entity borrows generally when calculating the capitalisation rate on general borrowings. These
amendments are to be applied for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint
operation, the entity applies the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring its previously held interest (PHI) in the joint operation at fair value.
The PHI to be remeasured includes any unrecognised assets, liabilities and goodwill relating
to the joint operation. These amendments are to be applied for business combinations in
which the date of acquisition is on or after 1 April 2019,

Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates in, but does not have joint contrg 005 )
of, a joint operation that is a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the en .tga?f‘ D
does not remeasure its PHI in the joint operation. These amendments are to be applied &
transactions in which joint control is obtained on or after 1 April 2019. S
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The application of all of the above amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements.

Plan Amendment, Curtailiment or Settlement (Amendments to Ind AS 19)

The amendments clarify that the past service cost (or of the gain or loss on settlement) is
calculated by measuring the defined benefit liability (asset) using updated assumptions and
comparing benefits offered and plan assets before and after the plan amendment (or
curtailment or settlement) but ignoring the effect of the asset ceiling (that may arise when the
defined benefit plan is in a surplus position). The change in the effect of the asset ceiling that
may result from the plan amendment (or curtailment or settlement) is determined in a second
step and is recognised in the normal manner in other comprehensive income.

An entity is also now required to use the updated assumptions from this remeasurement to
determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the reporting period after
the change to the plan. In the case of the net interest, for the period post plan amendment, the
net interest is calculated by multiplying the net defined benefit liability (asset) as remeasured
under Ind AS 19 with the discount rate used in the remeasurement (also taking into account
the effect of contributions and benefit payments on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).

These amendments are to be applied to plan amendments, curtailments or settlements
occurring on or after 1 April 2019.

The application of these amendments is not likely to have a material impact on the
Company’s Financial Statements.

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (Appendix C of Ind AS 12)

This Appendix sets out how to determine the accounting tax position when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments. The Appendix requires an entity to:

. determine whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group; and

. assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment
used, or proposed to be used, by an entity in its income tax filings:

o If yes, the entity should determine its accounting tax position consistently with
the tax treatment used or planned to be used in its income tax filings.

o If no, the entity should reflect the effect of uncertainty in determining its
accounting tax position.

The Appendix is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2019. Entities can
apply the Appendix with either full retrospective application or modified retrospective
application without restatement of comparatives retrospectively or prospectively.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scrvices Limited
{formerly known as Edelweiss Commoditics Services Limited)

Notes to 1he linancial statements (Contnued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

2 Property, Plant and Equipment
Gruoss Block A lated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block
Description af Assets 1 A;ﬁl?ols Md::: r;;l:.r e Disﬂ;s:i:: i 31 M:.\r’c:tzm 1 A]:Ar:.la;ﬂla Charge fo the ear mspt;;:;:: ik 3 M:r!e:‘lﬂm 31 MaA:c:tmlD
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leasehold Premises 19.64 0.14 - 19.78 691 6.30 - 13.21 657
Plant and Equipment 647 0.04 - 6.51 1.02 0.97 - 1.99 4.52
Furniture and Fixtures 49.67 6.33 - 56.00 1.3 1112 - 143 33.57
Vehicles 19.23 1.46 9,67 11,02 583 4.62 7.05 340 7.62
Office equipment 63.36 21.95 3.58 3L.73 21.36 2583 348 437 38.02
Compaters 144,99 55.14 6.07 193.97 45,25 60.99 3.93 102.31 91.66
Plant and Machirery-Solar poer 52,05 - - 52.05 1137 2.20 0.00 20,57 4148
Total 36532 85.06 19.32 431.06 103.05 119.03 14.46 207.62 22344
Investment property*
Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block
Description of Assets 1 A;;?ulﬂ Addcl:::se:: ik m”’.'.’f:fpi’l" 18 31 n:::czlzolg 1 A:rilazlﬂ 18 Charge for the yesr thx;s:iad: e a MaAlrsc:‘zu 19 3 MzArsc:tZIJIE'
Land 194.16 - - 194.16 - - - - 19416
Flat and Building 2,612.18 342,15 - 2,9584.33 130.61 123.37 - 253.93 2,700.35
Tatal 2,806.34 34215 - 3,148.49 130.61 123.37 - 253.93 2,894.51
Other Infangibile Assels
Gross Block A lated Amortisation and Impairment Net Block
Description of Assets 1 A;suaz‘ms Md:::;se:: rine Displ.::;::r e a Mi\:czlzcus 1 A;:lallﬂls Charge for the year mp::s:;se:: T Marcn 2019 31 M:rsc:tml?
Goodwill 18.68 - - 18.68 18.68 - - 18,68 -
Other Intangible Assets
TS gftware 147.92 93.51 - 24143 57.03 67.39 - 124.42 117.01
LA
AN
‘\7‘ = N Total 166.60 93.51 - 260.11 75.71 6739 - 143.10 117.01

¥
RALED . 5: r'cur v‘éll: of the Investment property is Rs. 6,441 miliions, These assels are pledged for issuance of Non-convertible debentures {refer Note 21 and Note 24).




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commadities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency; Indian rupees in millions)

2 Property, Plant and Equipment

Gross Block Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block
Description of Assets Deu:::lCost Ad dgie::!n:: etl:cucilum Additions during the Disposals during the Asat A:s at Charpe forthe  Disposals during Asat Asat
| Aprit 2017 of Mezger year year 31 March 2018 | Aprid 2017 year the year 3| March 2018 31 March 2018
Property, Plant and Equipment
Leaschold Premises 8.29 333 8.02 - 19.64 - 591 - 6.91 12.73
Plant and Equipment 0.81 556 0.21 0.11 647 - 1.03 0.01 1.02 545
Furniture and Fixtures 29.63 322 16.82 - 43,67 1131 - 1131 38.36
Vehicles 6.67 5T 12,70 526 19.22 - 6.44 0.61 583 13,39
Office equipment 13.64 18.16 3235 0.7 6336 - 21.54 0,18 2135 42,00
Computers 45.70 35.93 64.12 .84 144,91 - 45.52 0.27 45.25 99.66
Plant and Machinery-Solar power 62.05 - - 62.05 - 11.37 - 11.37 50.68
Total 166.1% 71.91 134.22 7.00 365.32 - 104,12 1.07 103.05 262.27
Investment property
Gross Block Accunulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Black
Deseription of Assets Dm:::tCnst Ad dli: i:ns: isl:uﬂl Additions during the Disposals during the Asat As at Charge forthe  Disposals during As at Asat
| Aprl 2017 of Merger™ year year 31 March 2018 1 April 2017 year the year 31 March 2018 3] March 2018
Land 194.16 - - - 194.16 - - - - 194.16
Flat and Building 2,610,70 - 148 - 2,612.18 - 130,61 - 130.61 2.481.57
Total 2,804.86 - 1.48 - 2.806?34 - 130.61 - 130.61 2.675.73
Intanpible Assets
Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Ipatnnent Net Bleck
e O neserption af Asses D"e::ic”“ A dd'i’uf’:;: Cost  Additions during the  Disposals during the Asan Asat Charge forthe  Disposals during Asat Asat
s ff)i\ 1 April 2017 of Merger* year year 31 March 2018 1 April 2017 year the year 31 March 2618 31 March 2018
18.68 - - - 18.68 - 18.68 - 18.68 -
(p;ﬁ\a tangibls Assets
80.42 86.78 45.55 64,83 141.52 - 66.13 9,10 57.03 90.8%
Total $9.10 86.78 45.55 64.83 166.60 - 84.81 9.10 75.71 90.8%

*Note; Refer Note 52 on merger of subsidiaries.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

Currensy: Indian rupess in millions)

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
::llli: Quantity Amount ::;: Quantity Amount vl:':: Quantity Amount
3 Non-current [nvestments
1 Quuoted Investments
Investrments in equity shares
Health Care Global Enterprise Limited - - - - - - 10 759,926 175.20
GHCL Limited - - - - - - 10 376,000 99.33
Quick Heal Technolopies Limited - - - - - - 10 63,771 15,07
11 Unquoted Investments -
Investments in equity Instruments of subsidlaries (fully pald up) -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 10 38,300,000 2,829.00 10 18,300,000 2,829.00 10 38,300,000 2,829.00
EC Commodity Limited 10 50043 - - - - - -
Edclweiss Comtrade Limited 10 3886 - - - - - -
Iovestments in equity instruments of associate companies (fully paid up) - - -
Altium Finance Private Limited 10 800,000 21.18 10 360,000 21.18 10 800,000 21.18
Investments in equity instruments of other group companies {fully pald up) - - -
ECL Finance Limited 1 294,472,650 3.362.84 1 294472650 3,862.34 1 146,976,650 862.84
Edzbweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 10 20,964,082 446.43 10 20,964,082 446.43 10 20,964,082 446.43
Edchweiss Finvest Private Limited 10 1,327,486 188.37 10 1,327,486 188.37 . - -
Edelweiss Tarim Ursaleri Anonim, Sirketi (23% paid up) - - - - - - 1ITL 2,250,000 43.36
Edelweiss Commodities Pte Limited - - - - - - SGD 1 12,724,304 613.01
Lichen Metals Private Limited 10 39,920 1.69 10 39,920 2.69 10 39,920 2.69
Investments in equity instruments of other companies (fully paid up) - - -
Investmant in shares- Equity -Gogii Ine - - - - - - $0.00001 610 0.51
Inditrade Business Consultants Limited 10 10,000 0.10 1 10,000 0.1 10 10,000 010
Silverglades Infrastructure Private Limited - - - 13 1,900 0.02 10 1,500 0,02
The Catholic Syrian Bank Limited - - - - - - 10 1,214,453 185.96
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited 1 37,020,000 44.64 1 37,020,000 54.05 1 57,020,000 55.54
Mantri Metallics Private Limited 0 487,156 60.45 o 487,156 60.45 - - -
Investments in preference shares of other companies (fully paid up) - - -
Non cumulative nen ¢onvertible redeemable - - -
7% Edelweiss Securities Limited - - - - - - 10 260,000 43.59
7% Edetweiss Broking Limited - - - - - - 10 - -
0.01% Edehweiss [nvestment Advisors Limited - - - - - - 10 160,000 83.80
1% Edclweiss Investment Advisors Limited - - - - - - 10 45,000 45.00
0.01% Edel Land Limited - - - - - - 10 125,000 92,90
Nono cumulative optionally convertible redeemable - - -
11% Edelweiss Broking Limited - - - - - - 10 1,267,000 281.61
Non gumulative compulsory ¢envertible redeemable - - -
0.01% Edchweiss Finvest Private Limited - - - - - - 10 1,327,486 183.37
7% Preference shares of Ecap Equities Limited - - - - - - 10 1,800,000 LI17.54
Non cumulative Compul! convertible red bl - - -
Allium Finance Private Limited 10 2,086,994 648.45 - - . - - -
Investments in debentures {fully paid up) - - -
17% Edclweiss Asset Recanstruction Company Limited 1,000,000 1,500 1,500.00 1,000,000 1,500 1,500.00 1,000,000 0 1,500,00
ECL Finance Limited - - - - - 100,000 5,000 510,30
Goldenlife Financial Services Private Limited - - 3,000 2,000 10.00 5,000 2,000 10.00
10% Mantri Mctallics Privatc Limited 1,000,000 128 12847 1,000,000 128 153,10 1,000,000 450 468.87
14% Orissa Stevederes Limited 926,829 210 151.26 926,329 210 200.02 926,829 210 220.50
10% Appu Hotels Limited 629,121 130 126,77 629,122 130 98,29 629,122 130 112.04
Investment in others - - -
Edelweiss Privatc Equity Tech Fund 100,000 853 120.562 100,000 85342 96.94 100,000 437 43.74
Edsiweiss Value and Growth Fund 100,000 3,032 385.07 100,000 2,624.84 262.48 - - -
lnvestment -Edchweiss Real Estate Opportunities Fund 33.06 10,000 4,750.00 52.50 10,000 3,200 32.00
Edclweiss Aliernative Investment Trusi- EW Clover Scheme 156.99 10,000 12,500 168.11 10,000 12,500 180.13
11!546.6 10,006.57 10.281.13

Note: Disclosures as required by IND AS 107 have been seperately provided in Note 56 and 59




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commaodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

4 Leans- Non Current

Secured

Receivables from financing business*
Provision for expected credit loss on lpans

Unsecured

Loans and advances to related parties

* Secured against diversified pool of real estate projects, land, bank balance
and equity shares

5 Other financial assets

Security Deposits
Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositories

As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
2,233.71 12,050.94 12,238.31
(212.63) (614.50) (439.46)
2,021.08 1143644 11,798.85

- 9.859.26 4,870.00

2,021.08 21,295.70 16,668.85

- - 25.26

0.13 0.13 0.13

0.13 0.13 25.39




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

6 Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets
Loans
Trpairment an loans
Investments and other financial instruments
Fair valuation loss on investments
Unrealised loss on derivatives
Employee benefit obligations
Provision for deferred bonus
Unused tax credit
MAT credit entitlement
Unused tax losses
Accumulated Losses
Botrowings
Effective interest rate on bomowings
Gratuity & other employee benefits
ESOP cost
Share of profit from partnership firm
Reversal of fee income
Others ( share issuance expenses, lease equalisation reserve etc)

Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equinment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation (including intangibles)
Investments and other financial instruments
Fair valuation gain of investments and stock in trade
Bormrowings
Effective interast rate on borowings
Capitalised borrowing costs on building

Note: Refer note 61 for disclosures on Deferred Tax.

As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
398.40 705.40 578.93
3.29 - 11.38
1.47 10.32 2.63
- - 54.50
427.17 154.09 113.81
41,17 2317 86.48
- 21,73 30,44
23.51 54.07 7.73
- 48.95 -
- 21.40 7.41
86.80 86.80 -
0.83 2.16 2.02
982.64 1,128.09 £95.33
112.59 123,75 117.85
244.29 9.14 100.51
127.03 - -
34.72 3647 38.10
518,63 169.36 256,46
464.01 958.73 638.87




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Contirued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

7 Income tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes
(net of provision for income tax of Rs. [,300.92 millions (Previous vear: Rs.
3135.68 millions})

8 Other non-current assets
Capital advances
Other deposits

9 Inventories
Stock in trade commodities*
Consumables

* refer note 21 and 24 for charges on inventory

As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2618 1 April 2017
681.54 193.06 600.60

681.54 193.06 600,60

0.00 0.00 226.20

133 0.38 0.38

1.33 0.8 226,58

1,691.32 1,428.46 2,681,27

- 0.60 6.23

1691.32 1429.06 2687.50




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions})

10 Stockin trade

At fair value through profit or loss

(i) Mutual Fund

(ii} Debt securities

(iii) Equity instruments

(iv) Nifty-linked debentures
(v) Preference shares
TOTAL - Gross (A)

(1) Stock in trade held outside India
(ii) Stock in trade held in India
Total (B)

Less: Allowance for impairment (C)
Total Net (A-C)

. As at 1 April 2017
As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 (i.e. 31 March 2017)
95.22 1,99547 2,000.00
7,386.01 5,379.47 8,160,73
0.30 12.07 131.23
596.46 1,818.58 -

- 2.90 -
8,077.99 0,208.,49 10,291.96
8,077.99 9,208.49 10,291,96
8,077.99 9,208.49 10,291,96
8,077.99 920849 10,291.96




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2018 As at 1 April 2017
Face . Face . Face .
value Quantity Amount vahie Quantity Amount value Quantity Amount
11 Current investments
Mutual Fund -
Reliance Liquid Fund - Treasury Plan - Institutional Option - Growth Plan - - - 414.06 1.76 1,000 352 145
Invesco India Trasury Advantage Fund-Regular growth - - - 482,25 1.08 1,000 482 1.11
Investments in partuership firm, Capital account
Edelvalue Pariners - Capital Account - - 002 - - 348 - - 0.02
Edclweiss Resolation Advisors LLP - - 003 - - - - - 0.07
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP - - 0.10 - - 0.10 - - “
Investment in others
Forefront Wealth Advisors LLP - Current Account - - 107 - - 1.73 - - 19.86
Edelvalue Partners - Current Account - - - - - - - - 36.11
122 815 A

Note: Disclosures as required by IND AS 107 have been seperately provided in Note 56 and 59




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupecs in millions)

12 Trade receivables
Receivables considered good - Secured*
Receivables considered good - Unsecured
Receivables - Credit impaired

Less : Allowance for expected credit losses

*secured by inventory held on behalf of principal marked as lien

13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Cheques, drafis on hand
Balances with banks *

* Fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 280.53 millions (Previous year: Rs.
36.67 millions) held under encumbrance - refer note 43

14 Bank halances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits (refer note 43 on Encumbrances on fixed deposits }
Long term bank deposits with banks
Shott term bank deposits with banks

As at As at As at

31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
1,500.43 8,613.88 2,983.70
1,729.54 1,823.99 1,256.06
237.58 258.75 0.00
3,467.55 10,696.62 4,239.76
368.39 325.38 209.16
3,099.16 10,371.24 3,940.60
0.04 0.13 0.07

- 1,500.00 -

5,393.31 1,601.13 652.13
5,393.35 3,101.26 652.20
733.96 543.71 1,990.93
30.52 48.83 5222
0.36 0.16 3.52
764.84 592.70 2,046.67




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Tndian mipees in millions)

As at As at Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
15 Loans - Current
Secured
Interest accrued on credit substitutes (secured - refer note on schedule 4) 995.83 1,476.66 1,174.25
Unsecured
Loans and advances to related parties 16,97%.75 51,838.14 46,344.24
Loan & Advances to others - 397,09 513,93
Loans and advances to employees 341 4.74 778
Accrued interest on Ioans given related parties 366.17 164.35 572.83
Intercorporate deposits placed 4,152.43 5,472.10 14,824.60
Accrued interest on intercorporate deposits 0.01 - 21.97
Impairment on intercorporate deposits placed (270.31) (332.59) (386.87)
22,227.29 59,020.49 63,072.73
16 Other financial assets
Deposits placed with exchange/depositories 1.88 4.66 571
Deposits- others 140.07 111.48 105,58
Accrued interest on margin - 0.71 0.02
Receivable from exchange / clearing house (net) 0.52 0.52 433
Imerez:.t accrued on fixed deposits {refer note 43 on Encumbrances on fixed 558 357 0.85
deposits )
Currency options premium paid - 14.31 5.53
Premium paid on outstanding exchange traded options (including MTM) - 0.59 0.12
Margin placed with broker 83.01 435,14 643,93
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received - 3.70 0.25
231.06 574.68 766.32
17 Current tax assets (net)
Advance income taxes 516.56 1,022.76 117.88
(net of provision for income tax of Rs. 245.27 millions (Previous year: Rs.
1,747.45 millions))
516.56 1,022.76 117.88
18 QOther current assets
(Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Input tax credit 405.23 393.42 267.89
Advances to others 0.33 0.21 0.11
Advances to employees - 4.07 0.44
Prepaid expenses 61.09 55.13 32.55
Vendor advances 315.25 217.86 160,28
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 10.08 3026 10.89

792.03 700.95 472,16




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelwelss Commodities Services Linited)

Notes to the {financlal statements (Continaed)

: Indian in millions)
As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2007
19 Share capltal
Authorised:
4,25,00,000 (Previous year: 3,00,00,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each 425.00 300.00 300,00
7,20,00,000 (Previous year: 7,20,00,000) preference shares of Rs. 10 cach 720,00 720,00 720.00
1,145.00 1,020.00 1,020.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
3,97,75,367 (Previous ysar: 2,97,75,268) equity shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up 9IS 29775 297,75
397175 29773 297.75
Reconclliation of shares outstanding at the beginolng acd at the end of the year;
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each [ully paid
Outstanding a1 the beginning of the year 2,97,75368 29775 2,97,75,368 29775 2,97,75,368 297.75
Issued during the year 99,949,999 100.00 - - - -
Cancelled dus to merger - - - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,97.75.367 3375 2,97,75.368 291.75 2,37.75.368 29775
Shares held by boldlog / ultimate holdiag pany and / or their subsidiaries / i
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 Aptil 2017
Percentage Percentage Percentage
Number of shares Shareholding Number of shares. Shareholding Number of shares Shareholding
Equity shares
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, the holding company and its notninees 3,27,16,544 81.25% 2,97,75,368 100% 2,97,75,368 100%
Edel Finance company Limited 70,58,823 17.75% - -
Detalls of shares i the Company held by each shareholder holding more than § percent shares:
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 T Apil 2017
Percentage Percentage Percentage
Number of shares Sharehaldl Number of shares Shareholdi * Number of shares Sharehaldi
Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Edehweiss Financial Services Limited, the helding compary and its nominees 3,27,16,544 8125% 2,97,75,368 100% 2,97,75,368 100%
Edel Finance company Limited 70,58,823 1.75%

Rlights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

the Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 each. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will

be entitled [o rective remaining assets of the Company, after diskribution of all p The di

Note 1z

Mo share allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance sheet date,

Note 2:
No shares bought back by the Company during the period of five years immediately preceding the balance shect date.

ibution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edchweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the fB ial stat: (Continued)

(Currency: Indian napees in millions)

As at Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
P Reserves and surplus
Capital Reserve 402,85 402.85 49.21
Capital Redemption Reserve 30.00 30.00 -
Securities Premium Account 2,644.51 1,044.51 1,012,16
General Reserve - - 181,68
Debeature Redemption Reserve 1,356.22 2,356.22 1,661.36
ESOP Reserve 62.41 6241 52.77
Retained e2rnings “1.13) (1.336.76) (3,706.65)
5:454.26 2,559.23 (749.47)
Movement in Reserves and surplus
i.  Capital Reserve - Opening balance 402,85 49.21
Add : Additions during the year - 353,64
Capital Reserve 402.85 402,85 49'.2=ll
i, Capital Redemption Reserve - Opening halance 30.00 -
Add : Additions during the year - 30.00
Capital Redemption Reserve 30.00 30.00 -
iii, Securities Premium Account - Opening balance 1044.51 1012.16
Add ; Additions during the year 1600.00 32.35
Securities Premium Account 2644.51 104451 10 IZ.Al
iv. General Reserve - Opening balance ' - 181.68
Less : utilisations during the year . - (181.68)
General Reserve - - 181.68
v.  Debenture Redemption Reserve - Opening balanee 2356.22 1661.36
Add : Additions during the year - 694.86
Debeature Redemption Reserve 2356.22 2356.22 1661.36
vi. ESOP rcserve - Opening balance 62.41 52.77
Add : Additions during the year - 9.64
ESOP Researve 62.41 6241 52.77
vii. Retained Earaings - Opening Balance (1,336.76) (3,706.65) (841.09)
Add:Transacticns with shareholders in their capacity as such £ 2,336.54 -
Add: Deferred tax on ESOP (48.95) 48.95 -
Add: on account of Demerger - 78.82 -
Add: Profit for the year 1,339.34 746.10 802.76
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year @.07) 1.83 0.34
Add: Ind AS adjustments - - (2.440.23)
Amount available for appropriation 41.73) (494.36) (2,478.2%
Appropriations;
Interim dividend - 248.62 452.59
Dividend on preference shares - - 38.39
Dividend distribution tax - 50.60 100.24
Transfer to general reserve - (131.68) -
Transfer to capital redemption reserve - 2000 -
Transfer to Debenture Redemption Reserve - 694.86 637.21
- 842.40 1.22843

Retnined eamings “1L73) {1,336.76) (3,706.65)




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

21 Long-term borrowings

Secured

Non-convertible redeemable debentures *

Term loans from bank

[Secured by charge on immovable property with bank]

Interest accrued on bormowings

Unsecured
Preference Shares Capital - Fellow Subsidiaries
Preference Shares Capital - Outsiders

*Secured by charge on immavable property and a pari passu charge on the
receivables and stock in trade to the extent equal to the principal and interest
amount i.e. redemption value of debentures,

22 Other financial liabilities

Rental Deposits
Other payables

23 Long-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated leave absences
Deferred bonus

Asat As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
36,880.20 52,464.33 27,291.91
- - 2,030.37
1,502.23 1,177.77 1,099.76
1,420.50 1,299.86 1,711.53
379.35 379.35 379.35
40,182.28 55,321.31 32,512.92
51.24 68.61 84.65
- 0.10 -

51.24 68.71 84.65
1.86 36.97 12.30
11.36 10,34 6.79

- - 48.19

13.22 47.31 67.28




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelveiss Commoditics Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Centinned)

(Currency: Indian rupecs in millions)

24 Short-term borrowings
Secured

Bank overdraft
[Secured by pari passu charge on inventory and corporate guarantee of ultimate
holding company]

Working capital demand loan
[Secured by charge on inventory, receivables and fixed deposits]

Privately Placed Non-convertible debentures

[Secured by charge on immovable property and a pari passu charge on the
reccivables and stock in trade to the extent equal to the principal and interest
amount i.e. redemption value of debentures)

Sub-total (A)
Unsecured

Loan from related parties
Inter-corporate deposits

Commercial paper
Less : Unamortised discount

Bank overdraft
Short term loan from bank

Sub-total (B)

Interest accrued on bomowings (C)

Tatal (A+B+C)

As at As at As at
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
- - 252,06
207.19 - 1,000.00
8,678.65 910.00 4,115,00
8,385.84 910.00 5,367,06
1,015.30 969.28 7,158.04
4.00 2,968.52 487.50
1,000.00 52,340.00 56,530,00
(20.57) (1,066.11) (961.93)
979.43 51,273.89 55,568.07
- 1.71 7,500.00
- - 406.25
1,998,73 55,213.40 71,119.86
597.55 857.62 653.73
11,482.12 56,981.02 77,140.65




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Contineued)

(Currency; Indian rupees in millions)

25 Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

26  Other financial liabilities

Book overdraft

Accrued salaries and benefits
Others

Retention money payable

27 Other corrent liahilities

Withhelding taxes, Goods & service tax and other taxes payable
Advances from customers
Others

28  Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated absences
Deferred bonus

Proposed dividend

Provision for dividend distribution tax

Provision for capital expenditure

29 Current tax liabilities (nef)

Provision for taxation
(net of income tax of Rs. 625.38 millions (Previous year: Rs. 276.82 nifilions))

Asat Asat Asat
31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
2,175.46 4,359.46 4,586.23
2,175.46 4,359.46 4,586.23
78.51 379.39 810.59
202.85 330.74 112,39
1.26 - -

5.23 3.62 542
287.85 713.75 028.40
6.82 286.93 71.95
311.56 424.48 21743
35,83 131.64 16577
354.21 843.05 461.15
.77 10.52 2,31
2.75 3.26 1.60

- 97.06 109.28
38.39 38.39 237.88
7.89 7.81 48.72

- 4.00 0.67
51.80 161.04 400.46
36.86 180.66 61.67

61.67




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

30 Fee and commission income

Income from commodities services

Business support services income

Advisory income (including referral and arranger fees)
Others

31 Income from treasury

Profit / (Loss) on trading of securities (net)

Profit / (Loss) on trading in equity derivative instruments (net)
Profit / (Loss) on trading in commodity derivative instruments (net)
Profit / (Loss) on trading in currency derivative instruments (net)
Profit / (Loss) on trading in interest rate derivative (net)

Profit on sale of current Investment

Gain on derecognition of investment in preference shares

Profit on sale of long term investment

Dividend on Stock in trade

Dividend on long term investment

Share of profit/(loss) in partnership firm

Fair value gain / (loss) - Equity

Profit / (Loss} on sale of long term investment

Fair value gain / (loss) - Debt Instruments

32 Interest income

Interest Income from group company loans

Interest income on loans from others

Interest income on fixed deposits

Interest income on debt instrument

Interest income on margin with brokers

Interest income on delayed payments

Interest income on preference shares - group companies
Interest income on unwinding of security deposit
Interest Income - Others

33 Other operating revenue

Warchouse income
Rental income
Gain due to foreign exchange movement on trade

34 Other income

Profit on sale of fixed assets (net)
W}(char{ge gain
& “‘M1s'callm1\eous income
gy 5=

200.15 218.14
1,594.64 1,108.92
117.58 508.57
0.18 0.30
1,912.55 1,835.93
220,27 12.53
113.71 75.65
99,80 (1.24)
(225.11) (31.69)
8.63 38.62

- 0.60

- 188.28

3.56 370.80
0.16 267.29
0.18 -
4.33) 40.00
8.26 (116.83)
(11.66) (112.98)
881.61 (137.20)
1,095.08 593.83
5,839.87 8,084.39
596.96 2,879.32
32.62 101.72
4,124.68 1,706.49
25.56 35.88
522.51 468.63

- 172.13

1.25 -
146.41 5.19
11,289.86 13,453.75
771.61 1,022.85
382.34 425.72
60.67 44.14
1,214.62 1,492.71
1.13 4353
3.55 -
42.38 13.10

47.06 56,6;32’:'
3 Q‘:\.Q’ W



Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
35 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries, wages and bonus 1,476.65 1,433.99
Contribution to provident and other funds 55.27 60.22
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) and Employee Stock (1.62) 728

Purchase Plan (ESPP) ) '
Staff welfare expenses 79.08 69.01
1,609.38 1,570.50

36 Finance costs

Interest on debentures 4,530.55 3,776.94
Interest on inter-corporate deposits 58.66 100.51
Interest on term loan ’ - 136.32
Interest on bank overdraft 14.39 19.03
Interest on loan from group companies 426.13 764.64
Interest on loan from others 88.93 783.33
Interest - others 19.59 10.76
Discount on commercial paper 4,114.32 5,736.38
Financial and bank charges 292.32 471.15
Interest on buyer's credit 6.85 60.57
Interest on shortfall in payment of advance income tax - 3.33
Finance cost- Preference Shares 162.38 201.61
9,714.12 12,064.57

-




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2019

For the year ended
31 March 2018

37

Other expenses

Advertisement and business promotion
Auditor's remuneration
Commission and brokerage
Communication expenses
Computer expenses

Clearing and custodian charges
Contribution towards corporate social responsibilities
Dematerialisation charges
Directors' sitting fees

Donation

Electricity charges (net)

Foreign exchange loss (net)
Insurance

Legal and professional fees
Membership and subscriptions
Office expenses

Postage and courjer

Printing and stationery

Impairment on financial instruments (net)
Rates and taxes

Rating support fees

Rent

Repairs and maintenance - Building
Repairs and maintenance - others
Security transaction tax

Goods and Service tax expenses
Stamp duty

Stock exchange expenses
Transportation charges

Travelling and conveyance
Warehousing charges
Miscellaneous expenses

Auditor's remuneration:
As auditors

Other services
Reimbursement of expenses

49.10 5.13
7.81 7.06
55.95 13.83
44.07 38.76
161.19 79.40
17.09 15.11
6.50 5.30
1.21 0.40
1.24 1.23
- 0.70
39.83 23.51
- 1.02
37.14 31.68
323.27 171.67
2.29 8.18
248.68 230.12
10.07 10.16
70.73 7.19
(108.98) 534.65
31.94 14.58
1.30 1.11
623.18 735.85
0.18 0.14
48.58 30.32
- 72.65
145.70 79.54
6.26 5.99
0.48 1.54
34.02 (0.53)
85.34 76.72
106.76 159.07
58.52 21.90
2,109.45 2,383.93
6.14 5.01
1.67 2,05
7.81 7.06




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency: Rupees in millions)

38

Segment reporting:

Primary Segment (Business segment)

The Company’s business is organised and management reviews the performance based on the business
segments as mentioned below:

Segment

Activities covered

Capital based business
Treasury management
Agency Business

Income from commodity trading, commodity derivatives and rental income.

Interest income and investment activity

Income from Real Estate Advisory activities, Business Support Services / Web Based Services,

Warehouse and other fee based services

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either
specifically identified with individual segments or have been allocated to segments using basis such as
employees headcount or segment revenue. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to

revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

Secondary Segment

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is
considered to operate only in the domestic segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment.

The following table gives information in terms of provisions of Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting

(Ind AS 108)
As at/ For the As at/ For the
Particulars year ended year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
I Segment Revenue
a) Capital based business 16,382.58 20,352.59
b) Treasury 12,137.50 14,043.63
c) Agency 2,688.95 2,858.73
d) Unallocated 146.42 5.83
Total Income 31,355.45 37,260.78
II Segment Results
a) Capital based business 198.81 (235.15)
b) Treasury 1,861.07 999.27
c) Agency (76.49) 230.98
d) Unallocated 139.92 {2.80)
Total 2,123.31 992.30
Profit before taxation 2,123.31 992.30
Less : Provision for taxation 783.97 246.20
Profit after taxation 1,339.34 746.10
III Segment Assets
a) Capital based business 6,592.77 6,196.17
b) Treasury 50,611.38 1,11,094.92
c) Agency 1,620.86 2,067.89
d) Unallocated 1,662.04 2,174.31
Total 60,487.05 1,21,533.29
Iv Segment Liabilities
a) Capital based business 2,384.98 3,060.52
b) Treasury 52,196.60 1,15,287.50
c) Agency 16.65 147.68
d) Unallocated 36.81 180.61
Total 54,635.04 1,18,676.31
Capital expenditure (including intangibles under development)
a) Capital based business 452.05 86.07
b) Treasury 109.75 84.59
c) Agency - -
d) Unallocated - -
Total 561.80 170.66




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency: Rupees in millions)

38 Segment reporting (continued):

As at/ For the As at/ For the
Particulars year ended year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
VI Depreciation and amortisation
a) Capital based business 228.59 242.12
b) Treasury 66.47 64.33
c) Agency 14.73 13.09
d} Unallocated - -
Total 309.79 319.54
VII Significant non-cash expenses other than depreciation and
amortisation
a) Capital based business - -
b) Treasury (175.61) 534.65
¢) Agency 66.63 -
d) Unallocated - -
Total (108.98) 534.65

No single customer represents 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for the year ended 31 March
2019 and 2018.




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency: Rupees in millions)

39 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 — “Related Party Disclosures” as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014:

Sr. No. Particulars

A. Names of related parties by whom control is exercised

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, ultimate holding company

B. Entities which are controlled by the Company

Edelweiss Agri Value Chain Limited*

Edelweiss Capital Markets Limited*

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited

Edel Commodities Limited *

EFSL Comrade Limited *

Edelweiss Business Services Limited*

EFSL Trading Limited*

Edelweiss Commodities Pte Limited (till 6 December 2017)

Edelweiss Tarim Urunleri Anonim Sirketi (till 27t February 2018)

EC Commodity Limited (w.e.f29* March 2019)

Edelweiss Comtrade Limited (w.e.f 29" March 2019)

*merged with the Company w.e.f. 1* August 2018 pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation however
merger accounting for the same has been effected w.e.f. 1% April 2017 basis “Method of
accounting for common control business combinations™ in accordance with Ind AS 103.

C. Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Lichen Metals Private Limited

Allium Finance Private Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited

Edelweiss Securities Limited

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited

Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency: Rupees in millions)

39 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 — “Related Party Disclosures” as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (continued):

C. Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions (continued):

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited *

Edelcap Securities Limited

ECap Equities Limited

Edelweiss Broking Limited

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited

Ede] Land Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Aster Commodities DMCC

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds Management Private Limited* (Merged with Edelweiss Asset
Management Limited w.e.f 1¥ February 2019)

Edelgive Foundation

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Auris Corporate Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 1 April 2017 )

Burlington Business Solutions Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 15 April 2017)

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Olive Business Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 15t April 2017 )

Eternity Business Centre Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 1 April 2017 )

Serenity Business Park Limited (merged with Ecap Equities Limited w.e.f 1% April 2017)

Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited

EW Clover Scheme

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited

EC Global Limited

5

:’5

Edelweiss Capital Singapore Pte Limited

EC International Limited, Mauritius

\‘1_"//
by ,

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte Limited

Edelweiss International Singapore Pte Limited

Tt

Edelweiss Investment Advisors Private Limited




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency: Rupees in millions)

39 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 — “Related Party Disclosures” as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (continued):

C. Fellow Subsidiaries with whom the Company has transactions (continued):

EAAA,LLC

EW Special Opportunities Advisors LLC

EW India Special Assets Advisors LLC

Edelweiss Securities (Hong kong) Private Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Inc

Edelweiss India Capital Management

EFSL International Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services ( UK) Limited

Edelweiss Holdings Limited

Edelweiss Securities { IFSC) Limited

Alternative Investment Market Advisors Private Limited

Allium Finance Private Limited w.e.f 02nd December 2018

Edelweiss Securities Trading and Management Private Limited (Formerly known as Dahlia
Commodities Services Private Limited)

Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited (Formerly known as Magnolia Commodities
Services Private Limited)

Enterprises in which fellow subsidiary companies exercise significant influence with whom
transactions have taken place:

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP (formerly known as Forefront Alternative Investment
Advisors LLP)

Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP (formerly known as Forefront Wealth Advisors LLP)

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund

Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund




Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (continued)

(Currency: Rupees in millions)

39 Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24 — “Related Party Disclosures” as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (continued):

E. Key Management Personnel with whom transactions have taken place

Mr. Rujan Panjwani (Executive Director)

Mr.Santosh Dadheech

F. Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Kalpana Maniar

Mr. Pradeep Nagori

G. Independent Directors

Dr. Vinod Juneja

Mr. Kunnasagaran Chinniah




Edelweiss Rural Corporate Services Limited
{formerly krown as Edelwelss Commodities Services Limited)

Note to financials statements {(Continued)
{Currency : Rupees in millions)
39 Related Parties (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars Name of related parties 2018-2019 2017-2018
Capltal account transactions during the year
Interim dividend paid/proposed Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 243.62
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.70 0.70
ECL Finange Limited 0.70 0.70
Shares issued to Eds! Finance Company Limited 500.00 -
Edelweiss Financial Service Limited 1,200.00 -
Current account transactions during the year
Intcr-corporate deposits placed with EW Clover Schemz] 9,645.00 36,998.50
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 23,445.04 8,100.00
Inter corporate deposils repaid by EW Clover Schemel 9,645.00 36,998.50
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 23,445.04 7,800.00
Short term loans taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 5,675.23 23,205.31
ECap Equities Limited 11,667.77 4,152.40
ECL Finance Limited 4,573.30 6,453.41
Edelwelss Finvest Private Limited 3,706.13 3,743.03
Lichen Metals Private Limited 130.96 26.20
Edelweiss Insarance Brokers Limited 4,70 31.98
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited 15.10 2.27
Ahemative Investinent Market Advisors Private Limited 46.13 4.50
Edel Finance Company Limited 1,033.80 -
EC Commoedity Limited 51,70 -
Edel Investments Litnited 504.00 -
Allium Finance Private Limited 731,70 -
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 50.00
Short term loans repaid 1o Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 6,498.61 20,658.78
Ecap Equities Limited 11,667.17 10,074.00
ECL Finance Limited 4,573.30 6,433.41
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 3,502.04 4,151.71
Lichen Metals Private Limited 140,60 16.00
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 122.01 16.05
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited 13.92 13.27
Alternative Investment Market Advisors Private Limited 0.64 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 1,015.43 -
EC Commodity Limited 51.30 -
Edel Investinents Limited 503.33 -
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 50.00
Long term loans repaid to (Refer note 1 and 2) Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 160.50
Short term loans given to ECap Equities Limited 36,146.75 63,460.23
{Refer note [ and 2) ECL Finance Limited 30,447.56 47,426.59
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 15,368.06 25.454.76
Edelcap Securities Limited 14,085.51 11.618.42
Edel Investments Limited 12,585.81 4,988.37
Edelweiss Investiment Advisers Limited 8,968.81 663.47
Edelweiss Global Wealth Manapemsent Limited 7,324.88 139.05
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 6,354.81 5,171.46
Edelweiss Securities Limited 6,057.65 9,200.37
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 5,984.9% 3,726.56
Dahlia Financial Services Pvt. Limited 5,881.41 4,042,72
Edelweiss Broking Limited 5,617.49 7.423.56
Magnolia Financial Services Pvi, Limited 4,948.39 12,095.86
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 3,642,38 2,968.60
Edelweiss Finance and Investnents Limited 3,362.96 19,252.30
Edelweiss Custedial Services Limited 1,354.29 3,338.54
Edelweiss Asset Manapement Limited 515.85 146.06
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 504.44 627.95
EC Commodity Limited 446.36 3.257.97
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 22705 343.15
Edel Land Limited 201.15 4,430.51
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 78.93 -
Lichen Metals Private Limited 21.36 8,29
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited 5.69 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 1.82 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - -

[=5
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Edelweiss Rural Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Note to financials statements (Continued)
(Currency : Rupees in millions)
a9 Related Parties (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars Name of related patties 2018-2019 2017-2018
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds M it Private Limited - 571.10
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 1.73
Short term loans repaid by ECap Equities Limited 38,169.79 61,349.20
(Refer note 1 and 2) ECL Finance Limited 41,561.52 49,382.44
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 23,129.53 17,692.80
Edelcap Securities Limited 15,558.29 11,191.78
Edel Investments Limited 12.,551.09 5.434.04
Edelweiss Investment Advisers Limited 9.405.14 4,318.34
Edelweiss Global Wealth M. it Limited 6,127.47 80.04
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 7,629.27 4,628.94
Edelweiss Securities Limited 5,117.15 14,634.28
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 6,180.06 3.686.26
Dahlia Financial Services Pvt. Limited 6,023.71 4,152.08
Edelweiss Broking Limited 11,490,638 2,684.72
Magnolia Financial Services Pvt. Limited 6,157.69 1111603
Edelweiss Fi fal Services Limited - 10,118.93
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited 3,051.92 19,516.51
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1,655.28 3.448.99
Edelweiss Asset M| sent Limited 484.81 254,56
Edelweiss Altemnative Asset Advisors Limited 120.76 34.68
EC Commodity Limited 1,816.30 1,968.48
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 340.80 180.77
Edel Land Limited 734,47 4,022.95
Lichen Metals Private Limited - 280.57
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited 5.56 -
Edel Finance Company Limited 1.82 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 4,989.26 160,50
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds Ma t Private Limited 695.49 72.30
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 5793
Commercial paper subscribed by ECap Equities Limited - 43,000.00
Commercial paper repaid to ECap Equities Limited - 48,000.00
Non Convertible Debentures subscribed by ECap Equities Limited - 200.00
Redemption of Stock in trade in debentures of Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 984.32
Security deposit received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.10
Nomination depaosit given to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.20
Nomination depesit received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.20
Investments
Investments in equity shares of Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 38.86 -
EC Commodities Limited 501.43 -
Investments in preference shares Allium Finance Private Limited 648.45 -
Investment in others Edelweiss Valug and Growth Fund 122.59 262.48
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund 23.68 41.60
Edelweiss Real Estate Oppurtunities Fund 1.00 R
Investment in Partnership firm Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP 1.96 -
Investments in debentures of Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 4,944.44
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 456.02
Investments in Nifty Linked Debentures (NLD) of Ecap Equities Limited - 1,752.65
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited - 55.00
ECL Finance Limited - 42.00
Redemption in debensuges off Edelweiss Asset Reconstructon Co.Limited - 934.32
Redemption of preference shares ECap Equities Limited - 1,800.00
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 1,417.00
Pty Edelweiss Secunities Limited - 260.00
e o DY R Edelweiss Investment Advisers Limited - 205.00
R e R Edel Land Limited N

ey




Edelweiss Rural Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Note to finantials statements (Continued)
{Cimrency : Rupees in millions)
a9 Related Parties (Continued)

{H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars Name of related parties 2018-2019 2017-2018
Secondary market transactions (acting as broker)
iMargin placed with (Refer note 1 and 2) IEdehveiss Securities Limited 1,065.27 882.21
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1,764.71 1,209.22
EC Commodity Limited - 20.55
Margin withdrawn from (Refer nate I and 2) Edelweiss Securities Limited 1,101.48 1,045.76
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 2,115.33 1.193.89
EC Commodity Limited - 20.55
Purchase of commodities from EC Commaodity Limited 582.22 335764
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 536.31 -
Edehweiss Securitics Trading And Management Pvt Limited 176.88 -
Lichen Metals Private Limited 0.74 -
Purchase of fixed assets from Edelweiss Securities Limited - 6.48
Edelweiss Global Wealth Manapement Limited - 1.30
Edelweiss Broking Limited 343.20 1.01
Ecap Eguities Limited - 0.78
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 0.51
|Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.24
ECL Finance Limited - 0.12
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited - 0.10
Edelweiss Asset M Limited - 0.03
Edelweiss Finance & Investment Limited - 0.02
ECap Equities Limited - 0.01
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited* - 0.01
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited* - 0.01
Sale of commodities to EC Commodity Lirnited 1.606.87 2.567.43
Ecap Equities Limited 284.56 -
Sale of fixed assets to Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.8
Fdelweiss Custadial Services Limited - 0.45
Purchase/subscription of dek res from ECL Finance Limited 26,356.82 7.605.87
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 1,462.00 3.511.00
ECap Equities Limited 7,.584.79 1,203.93
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited 249.79 653.16
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 1,028.03 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 246.84
Sale/redemption of debentures to ECL Finance Limited 20,432.53 13,855.35
ECap Equities Limited 2,949,581 9,544.31
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited 1,132.24 4,227.34
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 1,163.28 2,501.53
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 376,30 127.42
Edelweiss Broking Limited 10,98 400.96
Edelweiss General L e Limited 3175 116.24
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 2,100.04 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 33.02 146.23
Edelweiss Tokio life Insurance Company Limited, - 747.65
Interest received on debentures ECL Finance Limited 5.79 0.52
Edeclweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 62.03 483.36
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.05 -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1.82 -
Purchase/subscription of commercial paper from ECap Equities Limited 12,617.31 34,396.42
ECL Finance Limited - 14,970.12
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 14,920.45
Sale/redemption of commercial paper to Ecap Equities Limited - 42,829.35
ECL Finance Limited 49.55 4,997.23
Sale/redemption of centificate of deposil 10 ECap Equities Limited 49.59 2,737.24
Purchase / Subscription of certificate of depesit from Ecap Equities Limited 765.97 2,279.71
Sale/redemption of preference shares to ECL Finance Limited - 414.63
Edelweiss Broking Limited 83.25




Edelweiss Rural Corporate Services Limited
(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Note to financials statements (Continued)
(Currency : Rupees in millions)

39 Related Parties (Continued)

{H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars Name of related parties 2018-2019 2017-2018
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 35.04
Purchase / Subscription of pref.Shares from Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited - 83.82
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited - 4.03
ECL Finance Limited - -
Reimbursements paid to Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited - 79.95
Edelweiss Multi Strategry Fund Advisors LLP - 79.59
ECL Finance Limited 0.14 26.89
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 49.01 1.38
ECap Equities Limited 0.74 4.53
Edelweiss Mulii Strategy Funds Management Pvt Ltd - 3591
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 35.89
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited - L
Edelweiss lnvestment Adviser Limited - 16.31
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited - 9.51
Edel Investments Limited 0.21 3.68
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1.33 3.88
Edelgive Foundation - 3,58
Edelweiss Finance And Investments Limited 0.02 1,62
Edelweiss Holdings Limited - 1,36
Altemative Inv Market Advisors Private Limited - 0.84
Edelweiss Securities Limited 336 0.42
Edel Finance Company Limited - 0.42
Bdelweiss Trustee Services Limited - 0.36
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited - 0.31
Edel Land Limited 011 0.27
Edelweiss Brokinp Limited 5.67 0.24
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited - 0.10
Edelweiss Securities (Ifsc) Limited - 0.07
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.01 0.05
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 0.05
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 0.25 0.04
EC Comumodity Limited* 0.01 0.01
Edelweiss Asset Manapement Limited® 1.42 0.01
Edelcap Securities Limited™ 0.14 0.01
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited* - 0.01
Edelweiss Altemative Asset Advisors Limited® 0.85 0.01
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 0.05 17.46
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 23.06
Allium Finance Private Limited - 1.56
Reimbursement recovered from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP - 78.36
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 0.02 84.30
ECL Finance Limited 16.91 26.89
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 10.29 2.88
ECap Equities Limited 0,08 4.50
Edelweiss Securities Limited 7.53 0.42
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds M. 1t Pvt Ltd 0.08 37.34
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 35.89
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 0.34 31.19
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited - 16.31
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 030 9.51
Edel Investments Limited 0.17 5.68
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.13 .88
EdelGive Foundation 0.03 3.56
Edelweiss Holdings Limited - 1.36
Edelweiss Finance and Investments Limited 1.00 0.88
Allernative Investment Market Advisors Private Limited 0.02 0.84
Edel Finance Company Limited 0.01 0.42
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited - 0.36
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited - 0.31
EBdelweiss Broking Limited 4.86 0.24
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 0.15 0.10
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited* 0.01 0.07
Edelweiss Global Wealth M it Limited 0.64 0.05
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 1.47 0.04
EC Commodity Limited* 0.24 .00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited*® 0.20 0.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited* 3.29 0.01
Edelcap Securities Limited 1.33 -
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 1.14 17.46




Edelweiss Rural Corporate Services Limited

(formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Note to financials statements (Continued)
{Currency : Rupees in millions)
39 Related Parties (Continued)

(H) Transacilons and balances with related parties:

Particulars Name of related parties 2018-2019 2017-2018
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 0.15 N
Edel Land Limited .10 -
Lichen Metals Private Limited 0.02 B
Alfum Finanee Private Limited” 0.01 1.84
Edehweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 23.06
Remuneration paid to Rujan Panjwani 60,22 60.22
Santosh Dadheech 25.00 26,72
Director Sitting Fees Ku ran Chinnat 034 0.42
Vinod Juneja 0.46 0.12
Uday Shankar Dutt - 0.22
P. N. Venkatachalam - 022
Income
Business suppott service charges from ECL Finance Limited 341.67 107.17
Edelweiss Broking Limited 24376 163.54
Edelweiss Securities Limited 108.72 65.34
Edslweiss Housing Finance Limited 94.70 68.12
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 69.58 42.43
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 67.51 34.90
ECap Equities Limited 62.82 26.63
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 62.02 66.42
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 53.33 16.14
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 52.77 29,07
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 49.86 41.24
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 38.49 21.39
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 3653 5.16
Edelweiss Asset M t Limited 33137 31.65
Edelcap Securities Limited 32.94 23.53
Edelweiss Finance and [nvestments Limited 2743 29.37
Edelweiss Comirads Limited 25.55 16.55
Edel Investments Limited 16.73 11,24
Edelweiss Insurance Brokers Limited 14.87 26.56
Edelweiss Iny Adviser Limited 1442 12.27
EC Global Limited 5.94 6.64
Edelweiss Interr 1 (Singapore) Pte, Limited 5.57 -
EC Commodity Limited 5.07 6.36
Edel Land Limited 5.07 0.81
Dahlia Financial Services Pvt, Limited 4.93 -
Magnolia Financial Services Pvt. Limited 4.89 -
Allium Finance Private Limited 2,18 -
Edclweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Pte, Limited 2.58 1.48
EFSL International limited 1.42 1.97
Edelweiss Multi Strategry Fund Advisors LLP 139 2.85
Edelweiss Investment Advisors Pre. Limited 136 1.49
Alternative Investment Market Advisors Private Limited 1.20 038
Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited 1.02 0.81
EC I ional Limited 0.74 0.40
Edel Finance Company Limited D.55 0.04
Edelweiss Trustee Services Limited 0.36 0.78
Edelweiss Capital (Singapore) Pte. Limited 0.33 -
Aster Commadities DMCC 0.28 3.03
Edelweiss Securities (Heng Keng) Private Limited 0.10 0.14
Edelweiss Holdings Linited 0.06 0.04
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Funds Manag Pwvt Limited - -
Edelweiss Wealth Advisors LLP - 0.57
Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited - 0.05
Edelweiss Commodities Pte Limited - 0.05
Web-based service charpes from Edelweiss Broking Limited 43.13 97.85
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited 5.65 3.93
Collateral ma. t fees received from ECL Finance Limited 16,67 0.99
Dividend income on investment ECap Equities Limited 1.26 -
Edelweiss Securities Limited 0.18 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited ommemann, 1,204.35 T778.74




Edelweiss Rural Corporate Services Limited

{formerly known as Edelweiss Commodities Services Limited)

Note to financials statements (Continued)
{Curmrency : Rupees in millions)
a9 Related Parties (Continued)

(H) Transactions and balances with related parties:

Particulars Naime of related parties 2018-2019 2017-2018
ECL Finance Limited - 23.56
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited - 9.75
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 91,13 31,23
Interest income on Commercial paper from Edelweiss Securities Limited - 30.26
ECL Finance Limited - 29.53
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 14.81
Interest income on Nifty Linked Debentures ECL Finance Limited 10,49 -
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 13.94 -
ECap Equities Limited 746.04 -
lInterest income on loan from ECL Finance Limited 1,539.93 1,304.69
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited §14.00 1,431.76
ECap Equities Limited 554.30 1,565.14
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited 448.96 161.10
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited 437.69 441.28
Edelweiss Broking Limited 392,36 321.23
Edelweiss Securities Limited 303.61 608.6